
1

TOWN OF LOUDON
LOUDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

DRAFT
PLANNING BOARD MINUTES

OF OCTOBER 19, 2006

Meeting called to order at 7:00 PM by Chairman Tom Dow.

Attendance:
Vice Chairman Stanley Prescott, Tom Moore, Bob Ordway, Chairman Tom Dow, Gary
Tasker, Henry Huntington, and Ex-Officio Dustin Bowles were present. Julie Robinson
was present to represent the Conservation Commission.

Acceptance of Minutes:
September 21, 2006 Public Hearing. Henry Huntington made a motion to accept the
minutes as presented, seconded by Dustin Bowles. All were in favor.
September 27, 2006 Site Walk. Dustin Bowles made a motion to accept the site walk
minutes as presented, seconded by Stanley Prescott. All were in favor.

Discussions:
1. Voluntary Lot Merger – Ernest & Lisa Mills, Map 47, Lot 12 and Map 47, Lot 20. The

applicants were not present. The Board reviewed the lots and application. All was in
order. Stanley Prescott made a motion to approve the lot merger, seconded by Bob
Ordway. All were in favor and the merger was signed by all members.

2. Voluntary Lot Merger – Albert Dwyer, Map 31, Lot 12 and Map 31, Lot 13. The
applicant was not present. The Board reviewed the lots and application. All was in
order. Henry Huntington made a motion to approve the lot merger, seconded by Gary
Tasker. All were in favor and the merger was signed by all members.

3. Charter School – Beth McClure and Colleen Sliva told the Board of their plan to begin a
charter school and their proposal to use the former dance hall on Mudgett Hill Road for
this school. They said they are seeking direction from the Board as to what the Board
will be asking for from them when it comes to the application process. The Board noted
that schools are not listed as a permitted use in the C/I District. There was discussion
about the charter school concept, the state’s requirements for such a school, and general
information regarding enrollment, studies, and purpose of the charter school. Ms.
McClure and Ms. Sliva explained that the school would be K-4 with 60 students the first
year and 105 the second year. They would begin with grades 1, 2, and 3 and then expand
to K and grade 4 the second year. Ms. McClure presented copies of health inspection and
fire report forms that are required by the state. She also noted that there is an RSA that
states that a school can go in any district. The Board instructed Ms. McClure to come
back with this RSA as part of their conceptual review. Ms. McClure also presented a
letter that acknowledges their approval as a charter school and clarified for the Board that
this is a public school. Bob Ordway asked about the condition of the building. Ms.
McClure stated that they will have an engineer inspect the building once they get a feel
for how the idea is received by the Board. Gary Tasker told Ms. McClure and Ms. Sliva
that the Board will be working on zoning ordinances in the next few weeks and suggested
that they get involved in the process if need be with regard to allowing schools in the C/I

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


2

District. Tom Dow told them that it is very important that they get the information about
being able to put the school anywhere. It will have to be determined if the state’s
information overrules local zoning ordinance.

4. Deb Rattee – Tracy Sweeney from Richard Bartlett Associates and Mark Chamberlain
were present to clarify some confusion on Ms. Rattee’s recent lot line adjustment. In
May the Board approved the lot line adjustment with the condition that Ms. Rattee
applied to be put on the building permit list prior to the plan being recorded. The
building department will not approve the building permit application until the plan is
recorded. Mr. Sweeney and Mr. Chamberlain asked the Board to consider recording the
plan so that Ms. Rattee can continue with the process. They told the Board that Mr. Fiske
had concerns about Ms. Rattee using Rainbow Drive as access to the back piece of her lot
rather than accessing from the School Street frontage because he feels that Rainbow
Drive would have to be brought up to town road standards to create the required frontage.
They pointed out that Ms. Rattee has 61 feet of frontage on School Street where Rainbow
Drive begins. Ms. Rattee owns Rainbow Drive, therefore could use that as her driveway
access to the property. Dustin Bowles stated that he feels that using Rainbow Drive as
access to this property will require a Class VI waiver from Ms. Rattee. There was
extensive discussion about the lots, road frontage, and accessory buildings on lots without
a residence which was the reason that the Board had put the condition on the lot line
adjustment approval. Dustin Bowles stated that he has not been able to locate anywhere
in the regulations or ordinances where it states that there cannot be accessory buildings.
The Board agreed that this definitely needs to be addressed in the upcoming zoning
workshops. Tom Dow stated that Rainbow Drive would have to be brought up to road
standards if this property comes up for future subdividing. Henry Huntington made a
motion to have the lot line adjustment plan recorded, seconded by Bob Ordway. All in
favor with the exception of Dustin Bowles who was opposed. Motion passed with
majority vote.

5. Gravel Pit – Dan Plourde of Plourde Sand & Gravel was present to discuss the gravel pit
on South Village Road that the company recently purchased from Roy Buttrick. Mr.
Plourde was asked to come before the Board to discuss updating the excavation file on
this property. Bob Ordway suggested that the Board might want to do a site walk of the
area for better understanding of what is there now, particularly where there are two
separate lots and only one being mentioned in the excavation file. Mr. Ordway asked Mr.
Plourde what the company plans to do with the pit. Mr. Plourde said they will be taking
sand out but he isn’t sure just what they might do overall. There was discussion about
having it surveyed, the closeness to the river, and how much of the parcel would be open
pit area. Gary Tasker asked if the lot is grandfathered. Mr. Plourde said it is. Mr. Tasker
asked about the size of the piece that is grandfathered. Mr. Plourde said there are 9 acres
more or less and then a second piece of about 20 acres. Tom Dow stated that the Board
has to be sure everything is in compliance with RSA 155-E. He said they want to have
Mr. Plourde be able to do what he wants with the property but also have to their job
ensuring compliance. Bob Ordway asked Mr. Plourde if it would be fair to say the Board
would see an excavation plan. Mr. Plourde said he would have to say probably not, he is
not sure what he is going to do. He said he has leveled off some piles that were left by
the previous owner, would probably end up putting some trees along the river, but other
than that can’t tell the Board what might be done. Mr. Ordway again stated that he would
recommend a site walk so that the Board members have a mental image about what it is

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


3

they are discussing. Gary Tasker asked if there is an intent-to-excavate form that is to be
filed regularly. Mr. Plourde said he has filed that form with the Selectmen’s office. Mr.
Ordway said there should be a plan for reclamation. Mr. Plourde said there is not at this
point. There was discussion about the required forms, plans, and bond on gravel pits.
Mr. Plourde said his company has pits in other towns that do not collect bonds, naming
Hooksett and Pembroke. Dustin Bowles explained the formula used to calculate the
reclamation bonds that are held on all of the other pits in town. Mr. Tasker asked if the
Selectmen set that bond and Mr. Bowles said they do. Mr. Tasker stated that RSA 155-E
can be confusing and the Board wants to ensure that everything is in order with the
transfer and files. He suggested that Mr. Plourde might want to talk with the Selectmen
about a bond. Mr. Tasker asked Mr. Plourde what assurances the town has that he will
reclaim the parcel once excavation has been completed. Mr. Ordway said that is the
purpose of the bond. Mr. Plourde said his word is their assurance, adding that he has
already improved the property by cleaning it up and by taking care of the town’s water
problem by installing a catch basin at the edge of the road. There was discussion about a
bond being calculated from a reclamation plan. Mr. Plourde would not commit to any
plan, area to be worked, or materials on site for reclamation. He said he is having it
surveyed by a retired surveyor simply to know where his boundaries are. A site walk of
the Plourde property on South Village Road was set for Wednesday, October 25th at
4pm. The secretary will research if the second lot can be excavated under the
grandfathered permit. Mr. Plourde said he believes because the lots are contiguous he
can keep going from the original lot to the second lot.

Old Business:

1. Application # 05-11, Wildwood Sanctuary Association, Inc. – Major Subdivision,
Located on Young’s Hill Road, in the AFP District. Map 34, Lot 2. There were no
abutters present. Owner Len LaPadula was present. Louis-Berger Group reviewed the
off-site improvement plan for Young’s Hill Road and noted 9 concerns in a memo that
was forwarded to Sandford Engineering. Ray Shea of Sandford Engineering addressed
those items and sent revised plans and information to Louis-Berger. A memo from
Louis-Berger was received on today’s date stating that all points have been addressed and
everything with the off-site improvement plan appear to be in order. Stanley Prescott
said he has a concern about a property that is adjacent to the new road, saying that he
doesn’t feel that the homeowner will be real happy about the banking being cut and
boulders placed there. Mr. LaPadula said he would do what is necessary to make things
right. The Board reviewed town counsel’s response to the agreement that Mr. LaPadula
had developed with regard to completion of work, bonds, and easements. A copy of the
response was presented to Mr. LaPadula since he had not seen it prior to this meeting.
Mr. LaPadula stated that he will incorporate the town counsel’s comments into his
agreement and get it back to the Planning office for further review. Mr. Prescott stated
that it should be noted that if the town does not vote to do the additional 600 feet of
improvements to Young’s Hill Road Mr. LaPadula still has to uphold his part of those
road improvements. Dustin Bowles said this needs to be written in the agreement. Mr.
LaPadula said he would prefer to defer his portion of the improvements to 2008 (once he
has contracts on the first few lots) if the town does not elect to do the 600 feet next year.
Chairman Dow closed the hearing to the public and opened it to the Board only. There
was brief discussion about getting Mr. LaPadula’s agreement finalized prior to the next
meeting and the improvement work being tied in with town meeting, funding, and other

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


4

town projects. Stanley Prescott made a motion to continue this hearing to November
16, 2006, 7pm at the Community Building, seconded by Dustin Bowles. All were in
favor. There will be no further notification.

2. Application # 06-25, Patricia Perkins – Minor Subdivision, Located on Route 129, in
the RR District. Map 15, Lot 5. The applicant and surveyor Christopher Ogden were
present. There were no abutters present. Mr. Ogden reviewed the project to this point.
He explained that he has moved the proposed lot line rather than go before the ZBA to
ask for special exception to have the new driveway in the side setback. This still meets
the acreage and frontage requirements for both lots. The wetlands permit has been
received and the subdivision permit is pending. Mr. Ogden explained that he had to
resubmit the subdivision permit application to the state because of the change in lot line,
thus the delay. Mr. Ogden stated that he is asking for conditional approval based on the
pending subdivision permit. Chairman Dow stated that the Planning Board does not
make it a practice to do that and explained that this is not a complete application because
of the missing permit. There has been no driveway permit turned in on this application
but it has been issued according to Mr. Ogden. Tom Moore asked about the 180 x 240
box that designates the required buildable area. Mr. Ogden agreed to put it on the plan.
Chairman Dow said the plan looks fine, they just need to have all of the permits in place
and everything should be in order for the next meeting. He closed the hearing to the
public and opened it to the Board only. Gary Tasker made a motion to continue this
hearing to November 16, 2006, 7pm at the Community Building, seconded by Stanley
Prescott. All were in favor. There will be no further notification.

New Business:

1. Application # 06-24, Eastern Propane – Amended Site Plan to add a 2,000 gallon
aboveground diesel storage tank, Located on International Drive, in the C/I District. Map
49, Lot 127. Chairman Dow explained that this application was carried over from the last
meeting because abutters were not notified at that time. Abutters were notified for this
meeting, none being present. Bill Massey was present as the representative for Eastern
Propane. Mr. Massey explained that they have been to the ZBA and received special
exception to have a storage tank larger than 500 gallons. He told the Board that this is for
diesel storage for company trucks only, not for resale. There was discussion about the
tank specifications, location of the tank on the site, and safety precautions being in place.
Gary Tasker made a motion to accept the application as complete and move to public
hearing, seconded by Henry Huntington. All were in favor. Chairman Dow asked if
there were any questions or comments from anyone. Hearing none, he closed the hearing
to the public and opened it to the Board only. Gary Tasker made a motion to approve
the amended site plan application, seconded by Henry Huntington. All were in favor.
APPLICATION FOR AMENDED SITE PLAN APPROVED.

2. Application # 06-27, H. Wayne Thistle & Theresa O’Donohue – Minor Subdivision,
Located at Cross Brook Road, in the RR District. Map 12, Lot 41. There were no
abutters present. Web Stout represented the applicants. Mr. Stout stated that he had
received subdivision approvals earlier in the day and presented the approval number to
the secretary for the file. Henry Huntington made a motion to accept the application as
complete and move to public hearing, seconded by Dustin Bowles. All were in favor.
Mr. Stout explained the location of this lot that is to be subdivided from Mr. Thistle’s

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


5

property on Cross Brook Road, showing that the new lot would have 216 feet of frontage
on Thistle Hill Road. He said they are requesting a waiver of Section 12.4, Item #13.
Tom Moore asked where Mr. Thistle’s frontage is. Mr. Stout pointed this out on the map,
saying that Mr. Thistle’s house is on Lot 41. Henry Huntington asked if there is
sufficient contiguous area on the proposed new lot. Mr. Stout stated there is
approximately 1.6 acres of contiguous area and pointed out the 180 x 240 box. Stanley
Prescott asked if Mr. Stout would be going for a wetland crossing. Mr. Stout said the
proposal is to use Wiggins Road for the driveway. Mr. Huntington asked to clarify that
the front setback is off Wiggins Road. There was discussion about accessing from
Wiggins Road and the need for a Class VI waiver to use Wiggins Road as a driveway.
Gary Tasker asked if there would be work done to Wiggins Road. Mr. Stout stated that it
is in fairly good shape at this point because of work done to accommodate Cross Brook
bridge traffic after the floods. Mr. Tasker asked if the town has to be involved if Mr.
Thistle does any work to Wiggins Road. Dustin Bowles stated that they would if he is
pulling frontage off Wiggins Road. There was discussion about Wiggins Road staying as
it is after the Cross Brook bridge repairs are complete. Chairman Dow pointed out that
Wiggins Road has been kept open as a recreational trail and if it now will essentially be a
driveway it will affect the recreational usage. Gary Tasker asked if it should be noted on
the plan that this is a Class VI road and recreational trail that cannot be blocked or paved.
Dustin Bowles stated that he feels it may be reaching out a bit by allowing Wiggins Road
to be a driveway. Discussion continued about the wording of a note to be put on the plan.
Chairman Dow closed the hearing to the public and opened it to the Board only.
Stanley Prescott made a motion to grant the waiver of Section 12.4, item #13, subject
to the next time this parcel (M 12/L 41) comes before the Board it is shown in its
entirety, seconded by Dustin Bowles. All were in favor. WAIVER GRANTED.
Henry Huntington moved to approve the application with the condition that notes are
added to the plan with reference to recreational trail, no paving of Wiggins Road, and
the waiver to have a driveway on a Class VI road; seconded by Gary Tasker. All were
in favor. APPLICATION FOR MINOR SUBDIVISION APPROVED.

3. Application # 06-28, Roy D Merrill & Cynthia Merrill – Minor Subdivision, Located
on Lower Ridge Road, in the RR District. Map 51, Lot 15. There were no abutters
present. Web Stout represented the applicants. Dustin Bowles recused himself from the
Board for this application. Mr. Stout presented the state subdivision approval number to
the secretary for the file. Stanley Prescott made a motion to accept the application as
complete and move to public hearing, seconded by Tom Moore. All were in favor. Mr.
Stout said they are requesting a waiver to Section 12.4, Item #13. He pointed out the 180
x 240 box, saying that the proposed new lot is almost 3 acres and has 252 feet of
frontage. Mr. Stout said there are an area of wetland and some steep slopes as indicated
on the plan. Chairman Dow asked about the area of wetland on this property. Mr. Stout
stated that it continues to where there is a little pond to the upper side of this lot. There
was discussion about the history of the property, an old foundation and retaining wall at
the river. Chairman Dow closed the hearing to the public and opened it to the Board
only. Stanley Prescott made a motion to approve the waiver of Section 12.4, Item #13,
seconded by Gary Tasker. All were in favor. WAIVER GRANTED. Mr. Stout stated
that he will show the entire parcel when it next comes before the Planning Board.
Stanley Prescott made a motion to approve the subdivision as presented, seconded by
Tom Moore. All were in favor. APPLICATION FOR MINOR SUBDIVISION
APPROVED. Dustin Bowles returned to the Board.

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


6

4. Application # 06-30, Glenn & Francine Clave and Lester & Karen Maloon - Lot Line
Adjustment, Located on Creek Water Lane, in the RR District. Map 58, Lot 153 and
Map 58, Lot 123. Tony Merullo represented the applicants. The Claves were present;
there were no abutters present. Gary Tasker made a motion to accept the application as
complete, seconded by Henry Huntington. All were in favor. Mr. Merullo explained
that the proposed lot line adjustment would cut a small triangle off Lot 153 and add it to
Lot 123, simply to clean up the property lines. Chairman Dow said he did not remember
the lot being shaped like shown. Mr. Merullo explained that the road layout created the
triangle because of the curvature of the road, showing the subdivision prior to the road
layout. He stated that this adjustment leaves conforming frontage and acreage on both
lots. There was discussion about the shape of the lot and the tax map was checked to
confirm the shape to be as shown on the plan. Chairman Dow told Mr. Merullo that he
had done a nice job taking down the front of the property for better sight distance. Other
Board members agreed. The chairman closed the hearing to the public and opened it to
the Board only. Henry Huntington made a motion to approve the lot line adjustment,
seconded by Dustin Bowles. All were in favor. APPLICATION FOR LOT LINE
ADJUSTMENT APPROVED.

Discussion from earlier in the meeting:
1. Lisa and Ernest Mills arrived after the Board had considered and approved their

application for a Voluntary Lot Merger. Mrs. Mills stated that they would like to
withdraw the application as they have determined that the lot merger does not address
their original plan for the property. Dustin Bowles made a motion to retract the
Voluntary Lot Merger application, and subsequent approval, of Ernest and Lisa Mills
at their request; seconded by Henry Huntington. All were in favor. APPLICATION
FOR VOLUNTARY LOT MERGER RETRACTED AND VOID.

Board Discussion:
1. Board members would like a copy of the newest tax map. Donna will get a set for each

member. New ‘Planning and Land Use Regulations’ handbooks have been ordered for all
Board members.

2. Tom Dow stated that there will be a DOT public hearing on November 14th at 7pm
immediately following the Board of Permit. This hearing will address changes to be made to
the lights at the intersection of Routes 106 and 129. He also informed the Board about an
upcoming planning conference and instructed the Board to contact Donna for details if
interested in attending.

Report of the ZBA:
There are three applications before the ZBA. Two are special exceptions for reduced
setbacks: one for reduced side setbacks for 15 lots in subdivision (tabled from September)
and one for reduced front setback. There is a use variance to allow multiple kitchens in a
home on Bee Hole Road (tabled from September).

Report of the Board of Permit:
Bob Ordway reported on the October Board of Permit meeting.

1. There was discussion at the Board of Permit about allowing property owners to install
their foundation and septic system in the fall prior to the issuance of their building permit.
This came about after such a request was received by the ZBA at their September

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


7

meeting. Barnstead has a special permit that allows this work to be done, a copy of
which was reviewed at the Board of Permit meeting. Mr. Ordway said that the
compliance officer feels this would create too many problems and convinced the Board
of Permit that it is not a good idea. Dustin Bowles added that the Board of Selectmen has
decided to have town counsel draw up an agreement of this sort and the Board will move
forward with it.

2. There was discussion at the Board of Permit about impact fees being assessed on the
Villages at Loudon. The Board of Permit agreed that these fees should be assessed.

3. There was discussion at the Board of Permit about the Deb Rattee property on School
Street. Mr. Ordway said he felt there was missing information at the time of the Board of
Permit meeting but this has now been taken care when the Planning Board addressed the
situation earlier tonight.

4. There was discussion at the Board of Permit about a building permit issue on property
owned by Michael Harris. Mr. Harris was given approval for a garage with the
understanding that a house would be built once the building permit cycle came around.
He has since converted the garage into a house and is marketing it as such.

5. There was discussion at the Board of Permit about an application for special exception
for reduced setbacks that was before the ZBA at their last meeting. The ZBA tabled the
application and advised the applicant to return to the Planning Board for further review.
Mr. Ordway said he expected to see the applicant here tonight. Chairman Dow reported
that town counsel had advised the ZBA that they could not send the applicant back to the
Planning Board but could act only on the application before them. Gary Tasker asked to
clarify that the ZBA could only deny or approve the application. Bob Ordway stated that
the applicant is on the ZBA agenda for next week to continue the process. The secretary
reported that the applicant had stated at last month’s ZBA meeting that he had not done
the conservation land deed to the town because he was waiting for a letter from the town,
notifying him that minutes of 7/05 had been corrected. There was discussion about the
correction having been done at a public meeting, at which the applicant was present, and
the correction being in subsequent minutes, of which the applicant has copies.
Discussion continued about the need to enforce conditions of approvals. Dustin Bowles
said if town counsel is approached for guidance he must be refreshed of the situation and
needs the entire history to make an accurate determination of direction. It was decided to
wait for ZBA review of the application next week before contacting town counsel.

6. Dustin Bowles brought up an issue that came before the Board of Permit with regard to
daytime parking permits. He stated that the parking site for Atlas Fireworks was left a
mess with trash everywhere and recommended that the permit be revoked for next year’s
races. Mr. Bowles stated that Bob Fiske had reported problems with a couple of other
parking sites at the Board of Permit meeting.

There was discussion about accessory buildings and the need to address this in upcoming zoning
workshops. Roy Merrill said the closest he had found in the ordinance was page 11, section J.

A motion to adjourn at 10:25pm was made by Dustin Bowles; seconded by Henry Huntington.
All were in favor.

Respectfully submitted,

Donna White

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


8

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com

